
FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD 

WASHINGTON 

SUBJEC'r: "PUrchases of Acceptances from 
Accepting !larik:s. 

De~ Sir: 

X-3115 

May 13, 1921. 

There is enclosed for your information copy 

of a letter addressed by the Board to Hon. H. t. MYers, 

United States senator, in response to a comrwnication 

from him relative to complaint of the Montana Wool 

Growers Association as to the policy said to have been 

adopted by a Federal Reserve Bank with respect to the 

purchase of acceptances drawn against domestic ship-

ments of w6ol wheri offered by the accepting barik:s. 

Very truly yours, 

G o v e r n o r. 

TO CHAIRMEN ALL ft'!DE!AL RESERVE BANKS. 
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Ron. H. L. Myers, 
United States senate, 
Washington, D. c. 

My dear Senator: 

X-31158-

May 10, 1921-

I am writing with further reference to your let­
ter of April 30, 1920, enclosing a telegram from the Montana 
Wool Growers Association which, as stated in my letter of 
May 2F was referred by the Federa.J: Reserve Board to its 
Counsel. 

The telegram in question refers to my letter of 
JUne 22, 1920, quoting a statemen·~ authorized by the Federal 
Resene l3oard to the effect that a wool grower may draw a 
draft upon his bank secured by shipping documents covering 
wool shipped to some point of distribution, and that the 
draft after acceptance and when endorsed by a member balk 
will be eligible for rediscount .or purchase by Federal Re­
serve Batiks, provided, it has a ~~turity of not in excess of 
ninety days at the time of rediscount or purchase. The tel­
egram then states that the Federal Reserve Batik of Minneap­
Olis "advises that if borrowing individual already owes bank 
t;en per cent limit· drafts of su.ch borrower not eligible for 
discount unless bearing endorseroent of ~mber bank other 
then accepting bailk•, and su.ggesh that ihis requirement is 
a hardship upon the 11ool gr01fers and •hoUld be modified. 

Federal Reserve l3anks may, under the terms of the 
first paragraph of Section 14, purchase bankers' ac;ceptances 
in the open market "with or without the endorsement of a mem­
ber bark", and such purchases may be made from any individ­
uals, corporations, or barks. It is c.lear that llllder the 
terms of this paragraph a Federal Beserve J3atik technical-
ly has authority to purchase from the drawer or even from the 
accepting bank a bankers' acceptance which bears no endorse­
rr.ent other than that of the accepting bank. 

The normal and desirable practice, however, is for 
the drawer to discount acceptances wi. th some bank other than 
the accepting bank, rather than for the accepting barik: to 
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discount the acceptances. In view, however, of the fact 
that the acceptance business is compa!'atively :new in this 
country, and in view of the con::;equent lack of an adequate 
open market for bankers• acceptances in some districts, it 
has seemed best for scme of the Fed.eral Reserve Banks to 
purchase acceptances direct from the .accepting barks, in 
the hope that the proper use of, ~~d an active market for, 
bankers' acceptances may thereby be encouraged. 

It is apparent that the endorsement of the accept­
ing bank adds no strength to the instrument since the ac­
cepting bank is already liable prir.narily as as acceptor, and 
the Federal Reserve Board in February, 1920, instructed Fed­
eral Reserve Banks that all purchases, direct from the ac­
cepting bank, of bankers • acceptances bearing no member bank 
endorsement o·ther than that of the accepting bank should be 
made at the prevailing rate for commercial paper rather than 
at the preferential rate applicable to bankers' acceptances 
as such. 

The telegram of t~e Montana Wool Growers Associa­
tion refers to a ten per cent limitation, and I assume that 
this reference is to the limitation contained in the third 
paragraph of Section 13 of the Federal Reserve Act which pro­
vides that nc Federal Reserve Bank shall discount for any• 
member bank an aggregate of notes, drafts and bills bearing 
the signature or endorsement of any one borrower in excess 
of ten -per eeht of the member bank's capita+. and surplus, 
this restriction not applying to the discount of bills of 
exchange drawn in good faith against actually existing values. 
This limitation does not apply to open market purchase$ made 
under authority of Section 14, so that it does not prevent a 
Federal Reserve Bank from purchasing an unendorsed bankers' 
acceptance from the accepting member bark, even though the 
Federal Reserve Bank already holds under discount from that 
member bank paper representing loans in an amount equal to 
ten 'Per cent of the rr.ember bank's capital and surplus made by 
the rr.ember bank to the drawer of the acceptance. 

It should be remembered, however, that there is no 
obligation upon a Federal Reserve Bank to purchase paper of­
fered to it for rediscount or purchase even though the paper 
is technically eligible as a matter of law. The Federal Re­
serve Banks have discretionary power, just like any other 
batik, to decline to purchase paper whenever for any reason 
that course seems advisable. In view of the fact that an ac­
ceptance endorsed only by the accepting bank is supported by 
the credit of only two :parties, and in this respect is like 
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a customer's note endorsed by the bank, the Federal Reserve 
:Board feels that a Federal Reserve Bank is justified in lim­
iting its open market purchases of b&lkers t acceptances of 
this character so that it will at no time hold under redis­
count or purchase ·from one rr..ember bank an aggregate amount in 
excess of ten :per cent of the ~mber bank's ca:pi tal and sur­
plus of (1) notes, drafts and bills of any one borrower. and 
(2) bankers' acceptances made by the member bank for the same 
forrower, but bearing no endorsement other than tha* of 
the accepting bank. The Board bas, however, issued no rul­
ing upon this :point and for. the time being at least is will- . 
ing to leave the matter to the sound banking discretion of the 
officers of the Federal Reserve Bank~. 

The foregoing, I think, covers the various :points of 
law raised by the inquiry of the Montana Wool Growers Associa­
tion. As I have already said, whether or not and upon what 
conditions a Federal Reserve Bank Will rediscount or :purchase 
an eligible acc~ptance offered to it, are questions for the 
determination of the :proper officers of the Federal Reserve 
Bank in the exercise of their sound banking judgment in the 
light of all the circumstances of the particular case. I am 
q~te confide~t that the Federal Reserve Bank of Minneapolis 
in making the statement attributed to it did not intend to 
construe the law but merely intended to state its own judgment 
as to the propriety of purchastng acceptances under the condi-
tions stated. · 

For your information there is enclosed herewith a 
copy of my letter of J-une 22, 1920, which is referred to in 
the telegram o£ the Montana Wool Growers Association from 
which I think you will see that the Board fully appreciates 
the situation in which the wool growers find themselves and 
wishes to do what it can consistent with law and sound :princi ... 
:ples for the relief of that situation. 

Yours very truly, 

Go v e r n o r. 

Enclosure. 
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